AGENDA

WYTHEVILLE TOWN COUNCIL MEETING

MONDAY, JANUARY 12, 2026 AT 6:00 PM

MUNICIPAL BUILDING - 150 EAST MONROE STREET
WYTHEVILLE, VA 24382

10.

INVOCATION - VICE-MAYOR CANDICE N. JOHNSON

CALL TO ORDER — MAYOR BETH A. TAYLOR

ESTABLISHMENT OF QUORUM — MAYOR BETH A. TAYLOR

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE - COUNCILWOMAN HOLLY E. ATKINS

APPROVAL OF AGENDA

7:00 P.M. RECESS (if necessary)

CONSENT AGENDA

A.

Minutes of the regular meeting of December 8, 2025 (requires a motion and vote)

PUBLIC HEARINGS, REQUESTS, RESOLUTIONS, COUNCIL DECISIONS

A.

Conduct a public hearing to receive comments regarding the request of Donna
Leonard to amend a Special Exception Use Permit approved by the Wytheville Town
Council on June 9, 2025, to operate an Accounting and Tax Office on property located
at 525 North 4th Street, Tax Parcel Number 41A-1-22-7, in an R-2 Residential Zoning
District, with conditions, and to consider the issuance of a Special Exception Use
Permit (requires a motion and roll call vote)

CITIZENS' PERIOD

PUBLIC HEARINGS, REQUESTS, RESOLUTIONS, COUNCIL DECISIONS
(CONTINUED)

A.

|

O

Consider adopting a resolution establishing the dates, times and places for the regular
meetings of the Wytheville Town Council for calendar year 2026 (requires a motion
and roll call vote)

Consider the appointment of a Council liaison member and an alternate member to fill
the expired term of Councilman Joseph E. Hand, Jr., member, and Councilwoman
Holly E. Atkins, alternate member, on the District 11l Board of Directors for a one-year
term (terms expired December 31, 2025) (requires a motion and vote)

Consider the request of Libby Dancy for waiver of fees for use of Withers Park to
conduct a Senior Appreciation Day event on Thursday, June 11, 2026 (requires a
motion and vote)



11.

12.

13.

14.

D. Consider the request of the American Cancer Society for waiver of fees for use of
Withers Park on Saturday, May 16, 2026, to conduct the Relay for Life event (requires
a motion and vote)

E. Consider adopting the annual Fair Housing Resolution (requires a motion and roll
call vote)

E. Consider approving the revised Veterans Banner Program Guidelines (requires a
motion and roll call vote)

REPORTS

A. Upcoming Meetings - TOWN CLERK BRANDI JONES

OTHER BUSINESS

© o @

Continued review of the proposed amendments to the Town Council Rules of
Procedure (no action required at this time)

Council Member Time
Town Manager Time

Miscellaneous

CLOSED MEETING

A. Closed Meeting pursuant to 8§ 2.2-3711 (A.) (1.) Discussion regarding a prospective
contractual candidate for employment in the Administrative Department; and, pursuant
to § 2.2-3711 (A.) (29.) Discussion regarding the terms or scope of public contracts
(water rates and property leases) (requires a motion and vote)

B. Certification of Closed Meeting (requires a motion and roll call vote)

ADJOURNMENT






MINUTES

WYTHEVILLE TOWN COUNCIL MEETING

MONDAY, DECEMBER 08, 2025 AT 6:00 PM

MUNICIPAL BUILDING - 150 EAST MONROE STREET
WYTHEVILLE, VA 24382

UNAPPROVED MINUTES

RE: ATTENDANCE

MEMBERS PRESENT:
Mayor Beth Taylor, Vice-Mayor Candice Johnson, Councilwoman Cathy Pattison,
Councilwoman Holly Atkins, Councilman Joseph Hand, Jr.

MEMBERS ABSENT:
None

OTHERS PRESENT:

Interim Town Manager Sherry Corvin, Town Attorney Paul Cassell, Chief Deputy Clerk
Brandi Jones, Town Treasurer Angela Pennington, Computer Operations Manager Ron
Jude, Director of Public Utilities and Engineering Billy Anderson, Assistant Director of
Public Utilities and Engineering Andrew Austin, Police Officer Kyle Counts, Kevin
Wallington, Angela Porter, James Cohen, Justin Cohen, Randal Hamm 1ll, Randal Hamm,
Jr., Mike Forrest, Tommy Atkins, Kerry Eans

RE: CALL TO ORDER

Mayor Taylor called the meeting to order.

RE: ESTABLISHMENT OF QUORUM

Mayor Taylor established that a quorum of Council members was present.

RE: PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Councilman Hand.

RE: 7:00 P.M. RECESS

Mayor Taylor advised that for informational purposes only, the agenda includes a 7:00
p.m. scheduled recess.

RE: APPROVAL OF AGENDA

Mayor Taylor advised that the next agenda item is the Approval of Agenda. She inquired if
there was a motion to approve the agenda as presented.



Motion made by Vice-Mayor Johnson, Seconded by Councilwoman Pattison. Mayor Taylor
inquired if there was any discussion on the motion. There being none, the motion was
approved with the following voting results, by roll call vote: Voting Yea: Vice-Mayor
Johnson, Councilwoman Atkins, Mayor Taylor, Councilwoman Pattison, Councilman Hand,
Jr.

RE: CONSENT AGENDA

A. RE: MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF NOVEMBER 24, 2025

Mayor Taylor presented the consent agenda consisting of the minutes of the regular
meeting of November 24, 2025. She inquired if there was a motion to approve the
consent agenda as presented.

Motion made by Vice-Mayor Johnson, Seconded by Councilman Hand, Jr. Mayor
Taylor inquired if there was any discussion on the motion. There being none, the
motion was approved with the following voting in favor and there being no opposition:
Voting Yea: Mayor Taylor, Vice-Mayor Johnson, Councilwoman Pattison,
Councilwoman Atkins, Councilman Hand, Jr.

RE: CITIZENS' PERIOD

Mayor Taylor advised that the next agenda item is Citizens' Period. She stated that there
are two (2) citizens listed on the sign-in sheet who would like to address the Council during
Citizens' Period. She requested that citizens come to the podium and state his/her name
and address for the recording of the minutes to address the Council during Citizens'
Period. Mayor Taylor inquired if Mr. Kevin Wallington could please come to the podium to
address the Council.

Mr. Kevin Wallington was recognized and stated that he resides on Century Court in
Wytheville. He stated that he is the Chairman for the Wytheville Farmers' Market. Mr.
Wallington addressed the Council regarding the comments that have been made about the
Wytheville Farmers' Market’s request for a Concealed Weapons Policy to be adopted. He
noted that the Farmers' Market did not ask for or request a policy regarding concealed
weapons. Mr. Wallington advised that he emailed the Assistant Town Manager asking for
clarification as to whether or not the Town had a Concealed Weapons Policy. Mayor Taylor
thanked Mr. Wallington for his comments.

Mr. Mike Forrest was recognized and stated that he resides on East Withers Road in
Wytheville. He addressed the Council regarding the potential splash pad and his concerns
about the cost. Mr. Forrest stated that he does not feel like a splash pad is a viable option
for the Town due to the estimated cost and economic impact. Mayor Taylor advised that
she would like to clarify that the Council has not voted to accept or approve a splash pad.
Mr. Forrest continued to express his concerns regarding a splash pad, its ongoing cost and
its potential location. Mayor Taylor thanked Mr. Forrest for his comments.

RE: PRESENTATIONS TO TOWN COUNCIL

A. RE: PRESENTATION - WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT IMPROVEMENTS
PROJECT




Mayor Taylor advised that the next agenda item is a presentation by Assistant
Director of Public Utilities and Engineering Andrew Austin regarding the Wastewater
Treatment Plant Improvements Project and a request to authorize the Interim Town
Manager to execute the bid documents. Assistant Director Austin stated that the
Town has received loan approval in the amount of $24 million for the Wastewater
Treatment Plant Improvements Project. He explained that there is a very short
timeline to prepare a design plan for construction for the loan closing. Assistant
Director Austin noted that a Request for Proposal (RFP) was released for the design
work, contract administration and inspection for this project. He stated that there were
two (2) submittals, and they were from CHA Consulting, Inc. and The Thrasher
Group. Assistant Director Austin advised that Town staff scored these submittals and
selected CHA Consulting, Inc. as the winning submittal. He noted that he would
request Council to grant the Interim Town Manager the ability to execute the bid
documents for this project.

A motion was made by Councilman Hand, Jr. and seconded by Vice-Mayor Johnson
to authorize the Interim Town Manager to execute the bid documents for the
Wastewater Treatment Plant Improvements Project. Mayor Taylor inquired if there
was any discussion on the motion. There being none, the motion was approved with
the following voting results, by roll call vote: Voting Yea: Councilman Hand, Jr.,
Councilwoman Pattison, Mayor Taylor, Councilwoman Atkins, Vice-Mayor Johnson.

B. RE: RESOLUTION - AID TO LOCALITIES PROGRAM

Mayor Taylor advised that the next agenda item is consideration by the Town Council
to adopt a resolution of support for an increase to the Aid to Localities Program. She
inquired if there was a motion to adopt the resolution of support for an increase to the
Aid to Localities Program.

Motion made by Vice-Mayor Johnson, Seconded by Councilman Hand, Jr. Mayor
Taylor inquired if there was any discussion on the motion. There being none, the
motion was approved with the following voting results, by roll call vote: Voting Yea:
Vice-Mayor Johnson, Councilwoman Atkins, Mayor Taylor, Councilwoman Pattison,
Councilman Hand, Jr.

C. RE: MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING - VIRGINIA BREEZE BUS STOP

Mayor Taylor advised that the next agenda item is consideration by the Town Council
to approve the Memorandum of Understanding for the Virginia Breeze Bus Stop. She
inquired if there was a motion to approve the Memorandum of Understanding for the
Virginia Breeze Bus Stop.

Motion made by Vice-Mayor Johnson, Seconded by Councilwoman Pattison. Mayor
Taylor inquired if there was any discussion on the motion. There being none, the
motion was approved with the following voting results, by roll call vote: Voting Yea:
Councilman Hand, Jr., Councilwoman Pattison, Mayor Taylor, Councilwoman Atkins,
Vice-Mayor Johnson.

10. RE: PUBLIC HEARINGS, REQUESTS, RESOLUTIONS, COUNCIL DECISIONS

A. RE: REQUEST OF VIRGINIA ORGANIZING




Mayor Taylor advised that the next agenda item is consideration by the Town Council
to approve the request of Virginia Organizing for traffic control to conduct the Dr.
Martin Luther King, Jr. March on Sunday, January 18, 2026, at 2:00 p.m. She
inquired if there was a motion to approve the request of Virginia Organizing for traffic
control to conduct the Dr. Martin Luther King, Jr. March on Sunday, January 18,
2026, at 2:00 p.m.

Motion made by Vice-Mayor Johnson, Seconded by Councilman Hand, Jr. Mayor
Taylor inquired if there was any discussion on the motion. There being none, the
motion was approved with the following voting in favor, and there being no
opposition: Voting Yea: Mayor Taylor, Vice-Mayor Johnson, Councilwoman Pattison,
Councilwoman Atkins, Councilman Hand, Jr.

RE: REAPPOINTMENTS - WYTHEVILLE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT
AUTHORITY (WEDA)

Mayor Taylor advised that the next agenda item is consideration by the Town Council
to reappoint David Kause and Bobby Angles to the Wytheville Economic
Development Authority (terms expire December 12, 2025). She inquired if there was
a motion to reappoint David Kause and Bobby Angles to the Wytheville Economic
Development Authority (new terms expire December 12, 2029).

Motion made by Vice-Mayor Johnson, Seconded by Councilwoman Atkins. Mayor
Taylor inquired if there was any discussion on the motion. There being none, the
motion was approved with the following voting in favor, and there being no
opposition: Voting Yea: Mayor Taylor, Vice-Mayor Johnson, Councilwoman Pattison,
Councilwoman Atkins, Councilman Hand, Jr.

RE: REAPPOINTMENT - WYTHEVILLE RECREATION COMMISSION

Mayor Taylor advised that the next agenda item is consideration by the Town Council
to reappoint James Cohen to the Wytheville Recreation Commission (term expires
December 31, 2025). She inquired if there was a motion to reappoint James Cohen
to the Wytheville Recreation Commission (new term expires December 31, 2028).

Motion made by Vice-Mayor Johnson, Seconded by Councilman Hand, Jr. Mayor
Taylor inquired if there was any discussion on the motion. There being none, the
motion was approved with the following voting in favor, and there being no
opposition: Voting Yea: Mayor Taylor, Vice-Mayor Johnson, Councilwoman Pattison,
Councilwoman Atkins, Councilman Hand, Jr.

RE: HOMESTEAD LOG CABIN COMPLETION PROJECT — HOMESTEAD LOG
CABIN COMPLETION

Mayor Taylor advised that the next agenda item is consideration by the Town Council
to approve the appropriation of funds, not to exceed $80,000, for the Homestead Log
Cabin Completion Project. Interim Town Manager Corvin stated that the Department
of Museums has been awarded $80,000 in grant funds from the Wythe-Bland
Foundation. She noted that the Department of Museums is requesting the Town
Council to appropriate the funds in this fiscal year for the Homestead Log Cabin
Completion Project.



A motion was made by Vice-Mayor Johnson and seconded by Councilwoman Atkins
to approve the appropriation of funds, not to exceed $80,000, for the Homestead Log
Cabin Completion Project. Mayor Taylor inquired if there was any discussion on the
motion. There being none, the motion was approved with the following voting results,
by roll call vote: Voting Yea: Councilman Hand, Jr., Councilwoman Pattison, Mayor
Taylor, Councilwoman Atkins, Vice-Mayor Johnson.

11. RE: REPORTS

A.

RE: UPCOMING MEETINGS

Mayor Taylor advised that the next agenda item is upcoming meetings. Chief Deputy
Clerk Jones presented the upcoming meetings, as follows:

1. The Wytheville Planning Commission meeting scheduled for December 11, 2025,
has been cancelled. The next regular scheduled meeting of the Planning
Commission will be held on Thursday, January 8, 2026, at 6:00 p.m.

2. The Downtown Wytheville, Incorporated (DTW) Board of Directors will meet on
Monday, December 15, 2025, at 5:30 p.m., at the DTW Office.

3. The Wytheville Redevelopment and Housing Authority will meet on Wednesday,
December 17, 2025, at 12:00 p.m., at the Housing Authority Office.

4. The New River Regional Water Authority will meet on Thursday, December 18,
2025, at 10:00 a.m., at the Water Plant in Austinville.

5. The Wytheville Town Council meeting scheduled for December 22, 2025, has
been cancelled.

6. The Town of Wytheville Municipal Offices will be closed, and all services will be
curtailed, Wednesday, December 24 through Friday, December 26, 2025, in
observance of the Christmas holiday. Our offices will be closed on Thursday, January
1, 2025, in observance of New Year's Day.

7. The next regular scheduled Wytheville Town Council meeting will be held on
Monday, January 12, 2026, at 6:00 p.m., in the Council Chambers.

12. RE: OTHER BUSINESS

A.

RE: PROPOSED ORDINANCE PROHIBITING TOWN EMPLOYEES FROM
PERFORMING WORK ON PRIVATE PROPERTY

Mayor Taylor advised that the next agenda item is consideration by the Town Council
to instruct Town staff to prepare an ordinance prohibiting Town employees from
performing work on private property. Mayor Taylor inquired if there was a motion to
approve instructing Town staff to prepare an ordinance prohibiting Town employees
from performing work on private property.

Motion made by Councilman Hand, Jr., Seconded by Councilwoman Atkins. Mayor
Taylor inquired if there was any discussion on the motion. There being none, the



motion was approved with the following voting in favor, and there being no
opposition: Voting Yea: Mayor Taylor, Vice-Mayor Johnson, Councilwoman Pattison,
Councilwoman Atkins, Councilman Hand, Jr.

RE: REVIEW OF VACANCIES/UPCOMING VACANCIES ON TOWN
COMMITTEES, BOARDS AND AUTHORITIES

Mayor Taylor advised that the next agenda item is the review of vacancies/upcoming
vacancies on Town Committees, Boards and Authorities. She stated that Chief
Deputy Clerk Brandi Jones will present this information to the Council. Chief Deputy
Clerk Jones noted that there are two (2) attachments in the Council members'
meeting packet. She explained that the first attachment lists the remaining vacancies
that have yet to be filled in 2025, which include two (2) Board of Zoning Appeals
(BZA) members and one (1) BZA alternate member. Chief Deputy Clerk Jones
commented that none of these members wish to be reappointed. She advised that
the second attachment contains the upcoming vacancies for all Town Committee,
Board and Authority members’ whose terms expire in 2026. Chief Deputy Clerk
Jones stated that six (6) members' names are highlighted on this attachment. She
explained that three (3) of those are immediate openings and the other three (3) that
are highlighted expire in March, with one (1) member not eligible for reappointment.
Chief Deputy Clerk Jones commented that anyone who is interested in serving on a
Town Committee, Board or Authority can apply on the Town's OpenGov portal.

RE: COUNCIL MEMBER TIME

Mayor Taylor advised that the next agenda item is Council Member Time. She
inquired if Vice-Mayor Johnson had anything she would like to discuss during Council
Member Time. Vice-Mayor Johnson stated that she would like to thank the Town's
Public Works Department for its hard work that day during the snow event and for
blocking off Holston Road to help the Public Utilities Department prepare for the
water line repairs. She noted that she is grateful and thankful for the Public Utilities
Department and all Town employees, because without Town employees nothing
would get done. Vice-Mayor Johnson then presented photos that she took of the
conditions in town that employees had been working in that day. She stated that she
would like for these pictures to be put on record, so that citizens are able to see the
work that Town employees perform.

Mayor Taylor inquired if Councilwoman Atkins had anything she would like to discuss
during Council Member Time. Councilwoman Atkins stated that she appreciates
Downtown Wytheville, Inc. and the volunteers who helped conduct the Christmas
Parade. She noted that she had heard great feedback regarding the parade.

Councilwoman Atkins stated that she wanted to thank the Town's Public Works
Department for keeping the roads and streets clean during the snow event that day.

Mayor Taylor stated that on December 2, 2025, the Wytheville Meeting Center held a
memorial service for fallen Correctional Officer Jeremy Lewis Hall. She noted that
over 750 Public Safety officers, Department of Corrections staff, friends and family
were in attendance from across 19 states, and as far away as California to honor
Correctional Officer Hall. Mayor Taylor explained that thousands of events for a
variety of purposes have been held at the Wytheville Meeting Center during its 18



years of operation, and this was one of the most reverent and moving occasions ever
held at the Meeting Center. She advised that the Wytheville Meeting Center was
honored to be of service to the Virginia Department of Corrections during this tragic
time.

Mayor Taylor stated that she would like to thank all the volunteers, participants and
citizens who helped make the 2025 Wytheville Christmas Parade spectacular. She
noted that their participation made for a great success with thousands in attendance.

Mayor Taylor stated that the Wytheville Town Council would like to wish everyone a
Merry Christmas and a Happy New Year.

Mayor Taylor inquired if Councilwoman Pattison had anything she would like to
discuss during Council Member Time. Councilwoman Pattison stated that the Public
Works Department has done an outstanding job keeping the roads and streets clear
during the recent snow event that day. She commented that they do an outstanding
job every day, as well, and not just during inclement weather events.

Councilwoman Pattison stated that she would like to give a shoutout to Downtown
Wytheville, Inc. for a beautiful, long and successful Christmas Parade.

Mayor Taylor inquired if Councilman Hand had anything he would like to discuss
during Council Member Time. Councilman Hand stated that he would like to thank
Town staff for their hard work.

Councilman Hand stated that he is looking forward to a different 2026. He noted that,
hopefully, there will be upbeat personalities and goals set by the Council and
management that will make the room feel differently than 2025. Councilman Hand
explained that he is looking forward to a fresh start in 2026.

Councilman Hand inquired if there is an update regarding the 20th Street Bridge and
when it is anticipated to be opening. Interim Town Manager Corvin stated that the
20th Street Bridge is anticipated to be opened back up prior to the Christmas
holidays. Councilman Hand thanked the citizens for their patience regarding the 20th
Street Bridge Project.

13. RE: CLOSED MEETING

A.

RE: CLOSED MEETING PURSUANT TO § 2.2-3711 (A.) (1.) DISCUSSION
REGARDING APPOINTED POSITIONS, AND PURSUANT TO 8§ 2.2-3711 (A.) (8))
CONSULTATION WITH LEGAL COUNSEL REGARDING SPECIFIC LEGAL
MATTERS REQUIRING THE PROVISION OF LEGAL ADVICE

Mayor Taylor advised that it would now be necessary to go into a Closed Meeting
pursuant to 8 2.2-3711 (A.) (1.) Discussion regarding appointed positions, and
pursuant to § 2.2-3711 (A.) (8.) Consultation with legal counsel regarding specific
legal matters requiring the provision of legal advice. She inquired if there was a
motion to go into a Closed Meeting.

Motion made by Vice-Mayor Johnson, Seconded by Councilwoman Atkins. Mayor
Taylor inquired if there was any discussion on the motion. There being none, the



motion was approved with the following voting in favor, and there being no
opposition: Voting Yea: Mayor Taylor, Vice-Mayor Johnson, Councilwoman Pattison,
Councilwoman Atkins, Councilman Hand, Jr. (6:25 p.m.)

RE: CERTIFICATION OF CLOSED MEETING

Mayor Taylor stated that it is necessary for the Council to reconvene into open
session. She advised that it would also be necessary to certify the Closed Meeting.
Mayor Taylor inquired if there was a motion to certify the Closed Meeting pursuant to
§ 2.2-3711 (A.) (1.) Discussion regarding appointed positions, and pursuant to § 2.2-
3711 (A.) (8.) Consultation with legal counsel regarding specific legal matters
requiring the provision of legal advice, and that only public business matters were
heard, discussed or considered by the Council.

Motion made by Councilwoman Pattison, Seconded by Councilman Hand, Jr. Mayor
Taylor inquired if there was any discussion on the motion. There being none, the
motion was approved with the following voting results, by roll call vote: Voting Yea:
Councilman Hand, Jr., Councilwoman Pattison, Mayor Taylor, Councilwoman Atkins,
Vice-Mayor Johnson. (8:05 p.m.)

RE: RETIREMENT ANNOUNCEMENT - INTERIM TOWN MANAGER SHERRY
CORVIN

Mayor Taylor stated that she would announce the retirement of Interim Town
Manager Sherry Corvin. She noted that Interim Town Manager Corvin and her
husband made this decision, and that she is looking forward to retirement. Mayor
Taylor advised that Interim Town Manager Corvin has served the Town of Wytheville
for 33 years, with 12 of those years spent serving as the Town Clerk. She
commented that the Town Council would like to thank her for all her dedication and
service to the residents of the Town of Wytheville. Interim Town Manager Corvin
thanked the Town Council for all the years she has been able to work for the Town of
Wytheville. She stated that she was offered the full-time Town Manager position,
however, after much thought and consideration she is going to respectfully decline
the offer. Interim Town Manager Corvin noted that she will retire, effective January 1,
2026.

RE: APPOINTMENT - INTERIM TOWN MANAGER

A motion was made by Councilwoman Pattison and seconded by Councilman Hand,
Jr. to appoint Mr. Chris Slemp as the Interim Town Manager and Fire/Rescue Chief
effective January 1, 2026, with an agreed salary amount of $130,000. Mayor Taylor
inquired if there was any discussion on the motion. Vice-Mayor Johnson stated that
she would have liked to have been informed that Mr. Slemp was being approached
for consideration for this position. She noted that Mr. Slemp is a great man and
displays great character and integrity, and that she believes he will be great in this
position. Vice-Mayor Johnson commented that, however, she wished she would have
had the opportunity, as a Council member and Vice-Mayor, to have had some
discussion regarding this or to have been informed. There being no further
discussion, the motion was approved with the following voting results, by roll call
vote: Voting Yea: Councilman Hand, Jr., Councilwoman Pattison, Mayor Taylor,
Councilwoman Atkins, Vice-Mayor Johnson.



E. RE: APPOINTMENT - TOWN CLERK

A motion was made by Councilwoman Pattison and seconded by Vice-Mayor
Johnson to appoint Ms. Brandi Jones as the Town Clerk/Freedom of Information Act
(FOIA) Officer effective January 1, 2026, with an agreed salary amount of $85,000.
Mayor Taylor inquired if there was any discussion on the motion. There being none,
the motion was approved with the following voting results, by roll call vote: Voting
Yea: Vice-Mayor Johnson, Councilwoman Atkins, Mayor Taylor, Councilwoman
Pattison, Councilman Hand, Jr.

F. RE: TOWN COUNCIL RULES OF PROCEDURE

Vice-Mayor Johnson stated that she has a question regarding the Town Council
Rules of Procedure. She inquired about when the Town Council Rules of Procedure
will be considered for adoption, and if the Council is supposed to be following the
Town Council Rules of Procedure. Town Attorney Cassell explained that he needs to
review the Rules of Procedure to see if, or when, they expire. He noted that,
however, if they have not expired then the Council needs follow them, and if they
have expired then the Council needs to adopt a new Town Council Rules of
Procedure. Councilwoman Atkins inquired of Interim Town Manager Corvin regarding
if the current Town Council Rules of Procedure have expired. Interim Town Manager
Corvin stated that the current Town Council Rules of Procedure have not expired,
and that they were adopted in January 2025. She commented that, typically, the
Council will readopt them every January, and that the Rules of Procedure are
scheduled to be considered at the January 12, 2026, Town Council meeting.

14. RE: ADJOURNMENT

There being no further business to be discussed, Mayor Taylor adjourned the meeting.
(8:12 p.m.)

Beth A. Taylor, Mayor

Brandi N. Jones, Chief Deputy Clerk






WYTHEVILLE AGENDA ITEM
TOWN COUNCIL INFORMATION
Meeting Date: January 12, 2026
Subject: Public Hearing — Leonard Special Exception Use Permit
SUMMARY:

A public hearing has been scheduled to receive comments regarding a request from Donna
Leonard to amend a Special Exception Use Permit approved at the June 9, 2025, Town Council
meeting, to operate an Accounting Office and Tax Office on property located at 525 North 4%
Street, Tax Parcel Number 41A-1-22-7, in an R-2 Residential Zoning District, with conditions. A
copy of Assistant Town Manager Holeton’s staff report is attached for your review. If the Council
has questions regarding Ms. Leonard’s request, Assistant Town Manager Holeton will answer
those questions before opening the public hearing. After receiving comments from the public,
the public hearing should be declared closed. The recommendation from the Planning
Commission is to allow that the amendment to the Special Exception Use Permit be approved,
with the removal of Condition #4 (ADA accessible space with paved access to the front of the
building), while still requiring the site plan and parking stipulations (Condition #3) that were

approved on June 9, 2025.

Recommended Action

Action to approve issuing an amended Special Exception Use Permit for Donna Leonard to
operate an Accounting Office and Tax Office at 525 North 4" Street will require a motion and roll

call vote. Please note that if the motion is to approve an amended Special Exception Use Permit,



the Planning Commission has recommended the following conditions that should remain and be
included in the motion: (1) Hours of operation, no earlier or later than 8 a.m. — 6 p.m. daily; (2)
No left turn from the property onto North 4t Street. Right turn only. Appropriate signage to direct
traffic for ingress and egress into the site; (3) The parking layout requires the parking
configuration and minimum amount of parking spaces as shown on the application site plan.
Parking surface shall be a minimum of stone surfaced, or it may be paved at the discretion of
the applicant.; (4) Freestanding business sign shall not exceed 20 square feet of sign face area
and must meet all other sign requirements of the Entrance Corridor Zoning Overlay. Entrance
Corridor freestanding sign regulations provide a maximum height of six (6) feet tall, sign must
be located at least five (5) feet from any public right of way and fifteen (15) feet from any other

property line and sign cannot obstruct sight triangles of any street or access driveway.

G:\COUNCIL\Agenda Info\2026\Agenda Info - Leonard Amended Special Use Exception Permit.docx



Request to Amend Special Exception Use Permit Conditions

Staff Report:

By Elaine Holeton

Town Council Meeting
January 12, 2026

Applicant:
Address:
TM#:

Zone District:

Request:

Donna Leonard
525 North 4" Street
41A-1-22-7

R-2

Remove one of the Special Exception Permit conditions attached to the approval granted
onJune 9, 2025. The applicant request is to remove Condition #4 the requirement for the
ADA parking space with paved access to the front of the building. Staff would like to clarify
condition #3 regarding the parking layout and confirm whether the Council would or would
not require a graded and graveled parking area in the rear of the building.

Public Comments Related to this Application: No public comments were received, as of the date that

this staff report was prepared. If any comments are received, they will be provided at the
meeting.

Planning Commission Recommendation: The Planning Commission reviewed the application at the

Background:

November 13, 2025, meeting. The Planning Commission’s recommendation is to allow the
removal of Condition #4, (ADA accessible space with paved access to the front of the
building) while still requiring the site plan and parking stipulations that were approved at
the Town Council meeting on June 9, 2025. (Condition #3 references the staff site plan
indicating a graded and stone surfaced area for both the front and the rear parking areas,
with the rear of the building used for employee parking).

Ms. Leonard applied for a Special Exception Use Permit to operate an Accounting and Tax
Office in an R-2 Residential Zone District last spring. The Planning Commission considered
the application on May 8, 2025, and developed the conditions after an hour of discussion
with the applicant. The Planning Commission recommended the approval of the
application with the five (5) conditions. The Town Council reviewed the request and granted
a Special Exception Use Permit to Ms. Donna Leonard on June 9, 2025, with the five (5)
conditions attached. These conditions included.

1. Hours of operation, no earlier or later than 8 a.m. -6 p.m. daily.

2. No left turn from the property onto North 4" Street. Right turn only. Appropriate signage to direct
traffic for ingress and egress into the site.

3. The parking layout requires the parking configuration and minimum amount of parking spaces as
shown on the application site plan. Parking surface shall be a minimum of stone surfaced, or it
may be paved at the discretion of the applicant.

4. ADA accessible space with paved access to the front of the building.

5. Freestanding business sign shall not exceed 20 square feet of sign face area and must meet all
other sign requirements of the Entrance Corridor Zoning Overlay. Entrance Corridor freestanding



Signage:
ADA Parking:

sign regulations provide a maximum height of six (6) feet tall, sigh must be located at least five (5)
feet from any public right of way and fifteen (15) feet from any other property line and sign cannot
obstruct sight triangles of any street or access driveway.

The signage is installed, and the signage meets the condition requirements.

When | visited the site in October, Ms. Leonard voiced her concerns with Condition #4, the
requirement to provide the ADA parking space at the front of the building. Her preference for
ADA is to use the existing concrete area next to the home and a wooden ramp at the rear
door. This rear door ramp and entrance is in place.

Installing an ADA parking space in the front would require paving in the front parking lot, and
a long ramp to enter the building. After learning of Ms. Leonard’s concerns with Condition
#4, | discussed the matter with the Building Official who visited the site and informed us that
the Building Code would not require the ADA parking space and ADA improvements due to
the Rehabilitation Code Exemption. Federal laws typically dictate ADA compliance outside
of building code requirements. | explained to Ms. Leonard that if she did not want to comply
with the condition, she would need to reapply for the Special Exception Use Permit to have
Condition #4 removed from her Special Exception Use Permit. This is the primary reason we
are revisiting the Special Exception Use Permit. Below are the Building Department’s
comments regarding ADA parking for this site.

Handicap parking evaluation for 525 N 4 St (Provided by Building Department)

“The building is an existing building with an original occupancy of R-5 (Single Family
Dwelling), and the use is changing to B (Business) that is a change of occupancy for an
existing building. Since it is an existing building, we go to the 2021 Virginia Existing
Building Code.”

e Chapter 4 inthe Virginia Existing Building Code covers Accessibility

e Section 402.1 of Chapter 4 Change of occupancy - Existing
buildings or structures that undergo a change of occupancy are not required to be
provided with additional accessibility features.

e Alterations are defined in Chapter 2 as — Any construction or renovation to an
existing structure other than a repair or addition. (Not a parking lot)

e Since there is no construction or renovation work being done to the existing
structure then no additional accessibility is required.

e Accessibility would only be required if there were alterations to the building.”

Parking Site Plan:

Staff would like clarity as to whether the Town Council would require the grading and
gravel behind the building for employee parking. According to Ms. Leonard, three (3)
employees will park in the rear. Based on the conversation at the meetings in 2025, staff
interprets the parking site plan referenced in Condition #3 as the site plan in the staff
report that indicated a graded and surfaced parking area in the rear of the building. At
today’s meeting, | would like to receive clarity from the Town Council whether or not the
Condition #3 will include grading and graveling of the rear yard. The front yard has been
graded and stoned and appears to be adequate. If stone is used in the rear yard, it would
not allow striping of the spaces, but it would protect the site from soil degradation and



run-off. The Planning Commission would like to see the site protected with some type of
grading and at least a stone surface for the parking area in the rear.

Ms. Leonard submitted a site plan, which indicates her preferred parking lot layout and a
narrative with her application. You will notice that her preference is to not grade or stone
the rear parking area for employees.

Narrative and Site Plan Provided by the Applicant- Donna Leonard
PROJECT NARRATIVE

I will be operating an Accounting and Tax Office on the premises. Property will only be used for this purpose
and will never be lived in. Hours of operation from February through April will be Monday — Friday from 8:00
am until 4:00 pm. From May through January, hours will be Tuesday — Thursday from 8:00 am until 4:00 pm.

I do not see any negative impact to the surrounding community as we will not have crowds at any time.
During tax season, our client traffic is generally only one or two people at a time with a total of maybe 4 or 5
per day. Walk-in traffic is in and out quickly. Appointments are made one at a time in 1 hour increments.

There are two existing entries. One is marked with an ENTER sign and the other is marked with an EXIT sign
and RIGHT TURN sign

Employees will be able to park in the rear where there is a large yard area with trees and bushes that will
hide the cars from the house next door. I am now told that this is not permitted. We have enough concreted
area to park for now. I will re-address this at a later time.

Our business sign has been approved and erected.

The only reason for submitting this application is to address the removal of the ADA requirements which are
not required by the Building Code. However, this requirement got attached to my permit was most certainly
not in my control.



HoZ k0l 0
R |

i

AUUNLUILIOD 1850 S19 8U1 pub ‘4ol ‘Nol ‘puBoIaY '898M WS4 VASN '9A3089 ‘Sa sniv/5IND ‘soiudpiBoss insyuna ‘eqojoipubia 11s3 is8oinos

I =]

"oU| ‘SI99AODRISIUI GZ0Z @



Draft Motions for Consideration.

1) Motion to amend the original Special Exception Use Permit to remove Condition #4 regarding the
ADA space with paved access to the front of the building and clarify that Condition #3 means that
the rear parking area must be graded and graveled. (OR)

2) Motion to amend the original Special Exception Use Permit to remove Condition #4 regarding the
ADA parking with paved access to the front of the building and clarify that Condition #3 means the
site plan submitted by Ms. Leonard, to not require graded and graveling of the rear parking area.
(OR)

3) Motion to not allow any amendment to the original Special Exception Use Permit and require that
all five (5) conditions as originally shown, including the ADA accessible space with paved access to
the front of the building and the requirement for graded and stone surface of both parking areas.
(OR)

4) Any other type of motion that the Town Council may desire.









WYTHEVILLE
TOWN COUNCIL

Meeting Date:

AGENDA ITEM
INFORMATION

January 12, 2026

Subject:

Resolution — Town Council Meeting Dates, Times, Places

SUMMARY:

Please find attached a resolution setting forth the Town Council meeting dates, times and places

for calendar year 2026. Interim Town Manager Slemp will answer any questions from the Town

Council regarding this resolution.

Recommended Action

Action on this resolution will require a motion and roll call vote by the Town Council.

G:\COUNCIL\Agenda Info\2026\Agenda Info - Council Meeting Time, Date, Place Resolution 2026.docx




WHEREAS, Section 2-21 of the Code of the Town of Wytheville sets forth that the Wytheville Town
Council will meet on the second and fourth Mondays each month at a time prescribed by the Town Council; and,

WHEREAS, Section 15.2-1416 of the Code of Virginia, 1950, as amended, requires the Wytheville Town
Council to annually adopt a resolution at its organizational meeting setting forth the days, times and place of the
regular meetings of the Town Council during the ensuing months.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that on this 12" day of January, 2026, the Wytheville Town
Council hereby establishes that its regular meetings will be held in the Town Council Chambers, 150 East Monroe
Street, Wytheville, Virginia, unless otherwise stated, on the following dates and starting at the following times:

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that pursuant to the authority set forth in Section 15.2-1416 of the Code
of Virginia, 1950, as amended, if the Mayor, or Vice-Mayor if the Mayor is unable to act, finds and declares that
the weather or other conditions are such that it is hazardous for the members to attend a regularly scheduled
meeting, such declared meeting shall be continued to the following Monday, at 6:00 p.m., and will be held in the
Town Council Chambers.

ATTEST:

Resolution

January 12, 2026, at 6:00 p.m.
January 26, 2026, at 6:00 p.m.
February 9, 2026, at 6:00 p.m.
February 23, 2026, at 6:00 p.m.
March 9, 2026, at 6:00 p.m.
March 23, 2026, at 6:00 p.m.
April 13, 2026, at 6:00 p.m.
April 27, 2026, at 6:00 p.m.
May 11, 2026, at 6:00 p.m.
May 26, 2026, at 6:00 p.m.
June 8, 2026, at 6:00 p.m.
June 22, 2026, at 6:00 p.m.
July 13, 2026, at 6:00 p.m.
July 27, 2026, at 6:00 p.m.
August 10, 2026, at 6:00 p.m.
August 24, 2026, at 6:00 p.m.

September 14, 2026, at 6:00 p.m.
September 28, 2026, at 6:00 p.m.

October 26, 2026, at 6:00 p.m.
November 9, 2026, at 6:00 p.m.

November 23, 2026, at 6:00 p.m.

December 14, 2026, at 6:00 p.m.

Regular Meeting
Regular Meeting
Regular Meeting
Regular Meeting
Regular Meeting
Regular Meeting
Regular Meeting
Regular Meeting
Regular Meeting
Regular Meeting
Regular Meeting
Regular Meeting
Regular Meeting
Regular Meeting
Regular Meeting
Regular Meeting
Regular Meeting
Regular Meeting
Regular Meeting
Regular Meeting
Regular Meeting
Regular Meeting

Beth A. Taylor, Mayor

Brandi N. Jones, Town Clerk






WYTHEVILLE
TOWN COUNCIL

AGENDA ITEM
INFORMATION

Meeting Date: January 12, 2026
Subject: Appointments — District Il Board
SUMMARY:

The terms of Councilman Hand (member) and Councilwoman Atkins (alternate), on the District
Il Board, expired December 31, 2025. Both Council members are eligible for reappointment, if
the Council desires to reappoint the same members. The appointments to the District IIl Board

would be for a one-year term and will expire December 31, 2026.

Recommended Action

Action to appoint a member and an alternate member to the District Ill Board for a one-year term

(term expires December 31, 2026) will require a motion and vote by the Council.

G:\COUNCIL\Agenda Info\2026\Agenda Info - District Il Council Appointment 2026.docx



10-C



WYTHEVILLE
TOWN COUNCIL

Meeting Date:

AGENDA ITEM
INFORMATION

January 12, 2026

Subject:

Waiver of Fees Request — Libby Dancy

SUMMARY:

Please find attached a request for waiver of fees from Libby Dancy for use of Withers Park on

Thursday, June 11, 2026, to conduct a Senior Appreciation Day event. Assistant Director of

Parks and Recreation Crystal Hylton has reviewed and approved the request.

Recommended Action

Action on this request will require a motion and vote by the Town Council.

G:\COUNCIL\Agenda Info\2026\Agenda Info - Libby Dancy Senior Appreciation Day Event Waiver of Fees 2026 .docx




Town of Wytheville
Department of Parks and Recreation

Request for Waiver of Fees

Name of @rganization: e SQJ'\ICX \Q’pvp(éﬁw"h N DO&} / Profit

Date of Activity: "S\‘L(\L \ \ \ a D20 Tax-exempt No: L‘ ‘ - & Eq 8 OO S
X

Purpose of Activity: & Aor Q‘(')P T Ci a\'}) oNn [)Owl

Request of Area Hours Use Fee Additional Information

Withers Park 1:0A- 3 @'D 3300 3 OO reldabie dQFDLsr}

Elizabeth Park

Number of Persons in Attendance: g OO

Requirements
~The activity provides a direct recreational, educational or entertainment value to the participants.

w~Alcoholic beverages will not be sold, served, or consumed.

vThe activity was scheduled through the Department of Recreation at least one month in advance of the date of the
event,

L-Group requesting waiver of fees is a public agency, or group incorporated by the Commonwealth of Virginia as
non-profit organization.

Proceeds raised will be donated to: _r \.} } DY
{The generation of funds for a charitable or worthy cause shall not, of itself, be deemed as a reason for waiver of
Center or Park use fees).

1

Organization Representative: L\ bbu DQ(\ (L

Address:

cyseee [ zococ- |
ay Phone: [ s Phone: S
X Signature: wmr Date: {l !O 9 .{ 2-0 a 5

pprova , Q
5 : Date: !Q‘ |¢Y -&5

Director of Recreation:
Comments: Qi et nthor > nbin- prodid.

Approved By: Date:
Comments:

JAFORMS\FACILITY USE\SPECIAL EXEMPTION\WAIVER OF FEES.DOC



Community Center
333 Community Blvd
Wytheville VA 24382
Phone: (276)223-3378

FACILITY SALES RECEIPT

Receipt # 1409577

Payment Date: 12/04/25

Household: 21730
Libby Dancy

700 Berry Place L80
Marion VA 24354
libbydancy@gmail.com

Reservation Updated:

Withers Park, Withers Park

Reserv. Contact: Libby Dancy
Phone Number: (276)782-3666
Reserv. Number: 10591
Status: Firm
Purpose: Senior Appreciation Day
Anticipated Count: 300
Date(s) And Times New Fees JotalFees NewPaid ~  Total Pajd
Thu 06/11/2026 7:30A to 3:30P 0.00 200.00 200.00 200.00 0.00
Deposit: 0.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 0.00
Misc Fac. Comments: ~ Withers Park can not be blocked off from the public for walking track purposes.
Special Questions: Are you having Alcohol? No
What time is officer needed? {begin serving until 1/2 hour after stop serving):
Reservation Comment Code:
Processed on 12/04/25 @ 3:27 pm by jadejarvis Total New Fees 0.00
Qld Balances Included 300.00
| Total Due 300.00 |
Total Deposit Fees Paid 100.00
Total Fees Paid 200.00
| Total Paid 300.00 |

Household Balance Information
Ovaerall Household Balance Dus 0.00

Payment of: 300.00 Made By: Check With Reference: 8788

Page # 1 of 1



333 COMMUNITY BLVD
WYTHEVILLE, VA 24382
(276) 223-3378
Fax (276) 223-3364
rec.wytheville.org

Withers Park

o Withers Park rental is for the grass area inside the walking track. The walking track,
playground and monument area must remain open to the public.

¢ No tables or chairs are provided.

¢ Electrical hookups are available at the outlets throughout the park with 120v of service.
There are a couple 240v service at the stage.

¢ Any staking of tents, etc. can only happen if you have made arrangements by contacting
# 811 *Call before you dig #* so they can come mark the park for any underground
wiring, etc. You should call them at least 2 weeks prior to your event to ensure they can
come prior to your event. If this is not completed, then you should not be staking
anything into the ground.

¢ When event is over, the reserver is responsible for:
o Cleaning and removing all supplies brought in by rental group.
o Cleaning up of trash. Please make sure all trash is in a receptacle. Any trash that

does not fit in a trash receptacle must be taken off by the rental group.

¢ Please do not staple, nail, etc into any structure or to any of the trees.

Signature:CbﬁV\& \@\%é%ate: lgx{ oS lm




Ty \F“?}w
FACILITY RENTAL POLICIES Tawn 3 Wytheville

Deposit: A deposit is required for each room reservation payable when making the reservation (see
Center Rate Schedule). The deposit is refunded if the group has fulfilled the contract terms, the
group cleans up adequately, vandalism and damages have not occurred, and group has stayed within
rental hours. Any overage in rental hours will be withheld from the security deposit. If the security
deposit does not cover overage, additional fees will need to be paid upon leaving. Behavior
problems of any nature will result in forfeiture of the deposit.

Rental Fee: Rental fees are to be paid in full at the time the rental is made, in addition to the deposit.

Refund of Deposit: Deposit refunds will be issued in the form of a check and made out to and mailed
to the person whose name the reservation is in within 30 days of rental date. Or, if applicable, issued
onto the credit card that was used to pay for the rental within 3 to 5 business days, dependent on the
credit card merchants’ policies.

Cancellations: If a reserver notifies staff of cancellation at least three (3) weeks prior to the
reservation, rental use fees will be refunded in full. If a cancellation is made less than three weeks of
the scheduled reservation, a $25 cancellation fee will be deducted from the fees paid. If a reservation
is canceled or altered within one-week, rental fees will not be refunded.

Christmas and New Year’s Parties: Reservations for the Community Center during the months of
December and January are in much demand due to the holiday season. Therefore, the following
cancellation policies will be enforced for any activity scheduled in December or January:

More than two months; $75 cancellation fee: Two months or less; $150 cancellation fee: Less than
one month; no refund for facility use.

SET UP

Plans for decorating, setting up or using any equipment must be scheduled when reserving and is
included in rental use hours. All groups requiring the use of tables and/or chairs shall make
arrangements on layout when making reservation. Community Center Staff will set up tables and
chairs according to layout. Groups needing any audio/visual equipment must make arrangements
upon reservation and must bring in any personal equipment for testing at least two weeks in advance.
Under no circumstances are groups holding a permit to remove chairs, tables or other equipment
IR RO OB TR RIS No decorations mav be hung or attached to the ceiling. walls. doors o1
windows, No confetti or glitter is altowed. (B RSy G 1R R 3 A

CLEAN UP

Any group using a facility operated by the Town of Wytheville Department of Parks and
Recreation agrees to leave the facility as it was found. Clean up by user group includes but is
not limited to cleaning up of all decorations, food, and trash; cleaning tables; sweep and mop if
needed. Supplies, including additional trash bags, for clean up are supplied and are in closet. Clean
up must be performed immediately after the activity concludes and is included in rental use hours.
Failure to clean areas shall result in forfeiture of all or part of the deposit and/or assessed additional
costs for cleanup operations if deemed necessary.

ENTERING AND LEAVING FACILITY

Everyone must enter and exit through the front entrance. Room doors to the outside are for
emergency exit only and will alarm.

Entering: A representative from the group must report to the front desk of the building upon
entering the facility before area is unlocked. The supervisor will record the time group enters,
review contract information and general operating policies if needed.

C:\Users\recfrontdeskr\AppData\Local\Temp\FACILITY RENTAL POLICIES handout 3.doc



Departure: A representative from the group must report to the front desk of the building upon
departing the facility. The attendant and the representative review conditions of areas utilized prior
to departure. Any area not cleaned or damaged is to be noted on the reservation form. The
representative is required to sign acknowledging the damages. Failure to sign this form will result in
forfeiture of the deposit in full. Additional fees may be charged to the individual or group for
damages or additional staff needed to clean area.

DAMAGES TO FACILITY OR EQUIPMENT/DISRUPTIONS

Damages: Any reserver that causes physical damage to the facility or to any equipment shall forfeit
the deposit and/or be assessed additional costs for repairs (if deposit is not sufficient). The reserver,
agency or organization may also forfeit the privilege of future use of the building.

Disruptions. Any reserver or other person involved in a disruption at a facility operated by the Town
of Wytheville Department of Parks and Recreation will be suspended according to the rules and
regulations pertaining to disciplinary actions. In addition, any disruption occurring during a
scheduled reservation will result in forfeiture of the deposit.

LIABILITY

[ndividuals, groups, agencies, or organizations contracting to use the Center, or any facility shall
assume the responsibility for all persons and area of use.

Neither the Town of Wytheville, nor any of its operating agencies, shall be liable to any organization,
agency or individual using the facility nor to any other person, firm or corporation for any loss or
damage suffered during the use of said premise or on account of any defective condition or
depreciation of the portion of the premises used of any building, structure or equipment upon the
premises and entity using said facility assumes all risks to persons or property due to latent or patent
defects in the premises and fixtures thereon and the entity using the facility expressly agrees to
indemnify and save harmless the Town of Wytheville and all of its operating agencies from any and
all claims resulting from the use of the same.

Any individual, agency, or group hosting a community activity or fund-raising activity must provide
the Department with a copy of a current Liability Insurance Policy of not less than $1

Million.

Signature: M»&Mﬁ,@hb Date: | 2/ o6 (Smg‘s

TO BE COMPLETED WHEN LEAVING

Time In: Time Out:

Clean up: O Completed [ Not Completed
Notes:

O Damages Explanation

Staff Signature: Rental Signature:

C:\Users\recfrontdeskr\AppData\Local\Temp\FACILITY RENTAL POLICIES handout 3.doc



10-D



WYTHEVILLE
TOWN COUNCIL

Meeting Date:

AGENDA ITEM
INFORMATION

January 12, 2026

Subject:

Waiver of Fees Request — American Cancer Society

SUMMARY:

Please find attached a request for waiver of fees from the American Cancer Society for use of

Withers Park on Saturday, May 16, 2026, for the Relay for Life event. Assistant Director of Parks

and Recreation Crystal Hylton has reviewed and approved the request.

Recommended Action

Action on this request will require a motion and vote by the Town Council.

G:\COUNCIL\Agenda Info\2026\Agenda Info - American Cancer Society Waiver of Fees 2026.docx




2
=
5

=

: Town of Wytheville
Department of Parks and Recreation
Request for Waiver of Fees
Name of Organization'ﬁh‘_‘ef (: LY ( Jotalnl 74 Qg; ﬁs % ‘ Profit
Date of Actlvity: Tax-exemptNo:
Purpose of Activity: Oh\j '?\J’ L\CP )
Request of Area Hours Use Fee Additional Information
Withers Park Xh-u P $2"NS i3 \00 DLy aaposﬁ ‘reﬁ.u\dablo_
Elizabeth Park YNQJ‘ Q}AOJ Heattons

Number of Persons in Atlendance: (%OC)

Requirements
+The activity provides a direct recrcational, educational or entertainment value to the participants.

vAlcoholic beverages will not be sold, served, or consumed.

v The activity was scheduled through the Department of Recreation at least one month in advance of the date of the
event,

v Group requesting waiver of fees is a public agency, or group incorporated by the Commonwealth of Virginia as
non-profit organization.

v Proceeds raised will be donated to: 11}&0 N G gig D &)5 ;g‘h,\.
(The generation of funds for a charitable or worthy cause shall not, of itself, be deemed as a reason for waiver of

Center or Park use fees).
Organization Representative: ’j\mn_ QOb@,{+S

address: 9O Pox e

City/State: %0.\'\\!\\\{’ \ & Zip Code: Q43N0
Day Phone: =¥ W0 - L0O% - 18S9 Night Phone:

Signature: | QM_AQM Date: 11/10/25
Approval /)

/ W‘Qﬁf' Date: JQ—_\?;&§_

Director of Recreation:
Comments: O N LobZ@ 80 S

Approved By: Date:
Comments:

JAFORMS\FACILITY USEASPECIAL EXEMPTIONWAIVER OF FEES.DOC



&5

Parke & Rocrestten

Community Center
333 Community Bivd
Wytheville VA 24382
Phone: (276)223-3378

FACILITY SALES RECEIPT
Recelpt # 1350475
Payment Date: 08/15/25
Household: 1916
Jane Roberts
PO Box 626

Saltvilte VA 24370
jane.roberts@cancer.org

Reseorvation Detalls: Withers Park, Withers Park

Reserv. Contact Jane Roberts
Phone Number, {276)608-1859
Raserv. Number: 10061
Status Firm
Purpose: Relay for Life
Anticipated Count: 500
Date{s} And Times Jolal Fees  NewPaid Amouni Dye
Sat 05/16/2026 8:00A to 11:00P 375.00 375.00 0.00 0.00 375.00
Deposit: 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 0.00
Misc Fac. Comments.  Withers Park can not be blocked off from the public for walking track purposes.
Special Questions: Are you having Alcohol? No
What time is officer needed? (begin serving until 1/2 hour after stop serving):
Reservation Comment Code:
Processed on 08/15/25 @ 1:58 pm by crystath Total New Deposit Fees 100.00
Tola! New Feas 375.00
Tolal Due 475.00 )
Tota! Deposi Fees Paid 100.00
Total Fees Paid 0.00
Total Paid 100.00 |
Balance From Raceipt 375.00

Household Balance Information
Overall Household Balance Due

375.00

Payment of: 100.00 Made By: Credil Balance With Reference:

Page # 1of1



333 COMMUNITY BLVD
WYTHEVILLE, VA 24382
{276) 223-3378
Fax (276) 223-3364
rec.wytheville.org

Withers Park

e Withers Park rental is for the grass area inside the walking track. The walking track,
playground and monument area must remain open to the public.

¢ No tables or chairs are provided.

¢ Electrical hookups are available at the outlets throughout the park with 120v of service.
There are a couple 240v service at the slage.

s Any staking of tents, etc. can only happen if you have made arrangements by contacting
# 811 *Call before you dig #* so they can come mark the park for any underground
wiring, etc. You should call them at least 2 weeks prior to your event to ensure they can
come prior to your event. If this is not completed, then you should not be staking
anything into the ground.

o When event is over, the reserver is responsible for:
o Cleaning and removing all supplies brought in by rental group.
o Cleaning up of trash. Please make sure all trash is in a receptacle. Any trash that

does not fit in a trash receptacle must be taken off by the rental group.

¢ Please do not staple, nail, etc into any structure or to any of the trees.

11/10/25
Signature: %lm Asberta Date:



FACILITY RENTAL POLICIES Wytheville
Parko & Recrealien

Deposit: A deposit is required for each room reservation payable when making the reservation (see
Center Rate Schedule). The deposit is refunded if the group has fulfilied the contract terms, the
group cleans up adequately, vandalism and damnages have not occurred, and group has stayed within
rental hours. Any overage in rental hours will be withheld from the security deposit. If the security
deposit does not cover overage, additional fees will need to be paid upon leaving, Behavior
problems of any nature will result in forfeiture of the deposit.

Rental Fee: Rental fees are to be paid in full at the time the rental is made, in addition to the deposit.

Refund of Deposit: Deposit refunds will be issued in the form of a check and made out to and mailed
to the person whose name the reservation is in within 30 days of rental date. Or, if applicable, issued
onto the credit card that was used to pay for the rental within 3 to 5 business days, dependent on the
credit card merchants’ policies.

Cancellations: If a reserver notifies staff of cancellation at least three (3) weeks prior to the
reservation, rental use fees will be refunded in full. If a cancellation is made less than three weeks of
the scheduled reservation, a $25 cancellation fee will be deducted from the fees paid. If a reservation
is canceled or altered within one-week, rental fees will not be refunded.

Christmas and New Year’s Parties: Reservations for the Community Center during the months of
December and January are in much demand due to the holiday season. Therefore, the following
cancellation policies will be enforced for any activity scheduled in December or January:

More than two months; $75 cancellation fee: Two months or less; $150 canceliation fee: Less than
one month; no refund for facility use.

SET UP

Plans for decorating, setting up or using any equipment must be scheduled when reserving and is
included in rental use hours. All groups requiring the use of tables and/or chairs shall make
arrangements on layout when making reservation. Community Center Staff will set up tables and
chairs according to layout. Groups needing any audio/visual equipment must make arrangements
upon reservation and must bring in any personal equipment for testing at least two weeks in advance.
Under no circumstances are groups holding a permit to remove chairs, tables or other equipment
ORI d No decarations may be hune o attached to the cotlimz, walls. doors o
O FO A R [ SRS T able decorations are allowed.

CLEAN UP

Any group using a facility operated by the Town of Wytheville Department of Parks and
Recreation agrees to leave the facility as it was found. Clean up by user group includes but is
not limited to cleaning up of all decorations, food, and trash; cleaning tables; sweep and mop if
needed. Supplies, including additional trash bags, for clean up are supplied and are in closet. Clean
up must be performed immediately after the activity concludes and is included in rental use hours.
Failure to clean areas shall result in forfeiture of all or part of the deposit and/or assessed additional
costs for cleanup operations if deemed necessary.

ENTERING AND LEAVING FACILITY

Everyone must enter and exit through the front entrance. Room doors to the outside are for
emergency exit only and will alarm.

Entering: A representative from the group must report to the front desk of the building upon
entering the facility before area is unlocked. The supervisor will record the time group enters,
review contract information and general operating policies if needed.

J:\Forms\Facility Use\Facilty Use Agreement\FACILITY RENTAL POLICIES handout 3.doc



Departure: A representative from the group must report to the front desk of the building upon
departing the facility. The attendant and the representative review conditions of areas utilized prior
to departure. Any area not cleaned or damaged is to be noted on the reservation form. The
representative is required to sign acknowledging the damages. Failure to sign this form will result in
forfeiture of the deposit in full. Additional fees may be charged to the individual or group for
damages or additional staff needed to clean area.

DAMAGES TO FACILITY OR EQUIPMENT/DISRUPTIONS

Damages: Any reserver that causes physical damage to the facility or to any equipment shall forfeit
the deposit and/or be assessed additional costs for repairs (if deposit is not sufficient). The reserver,
agency or organization may also forfeit the privilege of future use of the building.

Disruptions: Any reserver or other person involved in a disruption at a facility operated by the Town
of Wytheville Department of Parks and Recreation will be suspended according to the rules and
regulations pertaining to disciplinary actions. In addition, any disruption occurring during a
scheduled reservation will result in forfeiture of the deposit.

LIABILITY

Individuals, groups, agencies, or organizations contracting to use the Center, or any facility shall
assume the responsibility for all persons and area of use.

Neither the Town of Wytheville, nor any of its operating agencies, shall be liable to any organization,
agency or individual using the facility nor to any other person, firm or corporation for any loss or
damage suffered during the use of said premise or on account of any defective condition or
depreciation of the portion of the premises used of any building, structure or equipment upon the
premises and entity using said facility assumes all risks to persons or property due to latent or patent
defects in the premises and fixtures thereon and the cntity using the facility expressly agrees to
indemnify and save harmless the Town of Wytheville and all of its operating agencies from any and
all claims resulting from the usc of the same.

Any individual, agency, or group hosting a community activity or fund-raising activity must provide
the Department with a copy of a current Liability Insurance Pelicy of not less than $1

Million.

Signature: %_/eﬂém Date: 11/10/25

TO BE COMPLETED WHEN LEAVING
Time In: Time Out:

Clean up: O Completed 0O Not Completed
Notes:

O Damages Explanation

Staff Signature: Rental Signature:

J:\Forms'Facility Use\Facilty Use Agreement'\FACILITY RENTAL POLICIES handout 3.doc



10-E



WYTHEVILLE
TOWN COUNCIL

AGENDA ITEM
INFORMATION

Meeting Date: January 12, 2026
Subject: Resolution — Fair Housing
SUMMARY:

Each year, the Town adopts a resolution that endorses the concept of providing fair housing. By
adopting this resolution, the Town, as a recipient of State and Federal funding, provides certain
assurances to the State and Federal governments that we are complying with various facets of
the law. One of the assurances that we must provide is that the Town endorses the concept of
fair housing and calls upon the citizens of Wytheville, along with those in the banking and
housing industries, to join and work together in the observance of free and equal housing

treatment for all.

Recommended Action

Action on this resolut